ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 13, 2015
3:38 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes, Vice Chair
Representative Ji m Col ver

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative Cathy Tilton

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Sam Kito
Representative M ke Chenault (alternate)

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 9

“"An Act providing for the licensing and regulation of private
investigators and private investigator agencies; and providing
for an effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 9

SHORT TITLE: PRI VATE | NVESTI GATORS/ AGENCI ES
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HUGHES

01/ 21/ 15 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 11/ 15 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 11/ 15 (H Heard & Held

02/ 11/ 15 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 23/ 15 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 23/ 15 (H) -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/ 02/ 15 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 02/ 15 (H Bills Previously Heard/ Schedul ed
03/13/15 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 13, 2015



G NGER BLAI SDELL, Staff

Represent ati ve Shel | ey Hughes

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the sponsor,
Represent ati ve Shel |l ey Hughes, prinme sponsor of HB 9.

STEVE CHRI STOPHER, Owaner

| nvestigative Services of Al aska, LLC

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 9.

W LLI AM PARLI ER, Oaner

McHenry Detective Agency

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 9.

ROBERT SHAW Oaner
Robert Shaw Agency
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 9.

JAVES HOFERER, Owner

JPH Enterprises

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 9.

FRANK WAKE, Private Investigator

Frank Wake Private Investigative Services, LLC
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 9.

DENA BOUGHTQON, Owner

Justice Investigations

Eagl e Ri ver, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 9.

ANTHONY COZZETTI, Owner

Pal adi n I nvestigations

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 9.

LI NK FANNON, Owner

Oracle Investigations

Meadow Lakes, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 9.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- March 13, 2015



ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:38:32 PM

CHAIR KURT COLSON called the House Labor and Commrerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:38 p.m Representatives Col ver
Tilton, Josephson, LeDoux, Hughes, and O son were present at the
call to order.

HB 9- PRI VATE | NVESTI GATORS/ AGENCI ES

3:38: 45 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 9, "An Act providing for the Ilicensing and
regulation of private investigators and private investigator
agencies; and providing for an effective date."

3:39: 25 PM

G NGER BLAI SDELL, Staff, Representative Shelley Hughes, Al aska
State Legi sl ature, on behal f of t he prime sponsor,
Representative Shelley Hughes, offered to review the original
version of the bill and highlight any changes that were
incorporated into the proposed commttee substitute (CS) for HB
9, \Version H This bill wuld establish Ilicensing and

regulation of private investigators and private investigator
agenci es.

M5. BLAISDELL indicated that a simlar bill canme before the
House Labor and Commerce Standing Committee |ast year and the
comm ttee recommended changes, which were incorporated into the
original version of HB 9 this legislative session. She provided
a section-by-section analysis of HB 9. Section 1 would require
the private investigator job class to be added to the list of
professional |icenses the Departnent of Comrerce, Conmunity &
Econom c Devel opnent oversees. The private investigator |icense
requi renents would add requirenents beyond the current standard

business license for private investigators. The initial bill,
HB 9, established two classifications: a private investigator
and a private investigator agency. The scope of practice

identified the types of tasks a private investigator could
perform such as investigating crimnal offenses, considering the
identity and habits of individuals, or basically conducting
general surveillance activities. Private investigators could

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 13, 2015



work for a variety of people, not just one entity, noting that
private investigator services can be contracted by the public or
by ot her conpani es.

M5. BLAI SDELL reviewed the general requirenents for |icensure
including that a private investigator nust be a US citizen, not
be convicted of a felony within the past ten years, or have been
convicted by another jurisdiction of a crine of noral turpitude
or sexual m sconduct. She stated that noral turpitude was
defined in statute to include crines such as nurder or rape.
Applicants cannot be on probation or parole or be declared by
the court as inconpetent, be currently enployed as a peace
officer or as an agent of the US conducting investigative work,
nor could they have a conflict of interest as determ ned by the
[ Depart ment of Conmmerce, Community & Econom c Devel opnent].

3:44: 27 PM

V5. BLAI SDELL related that the bill, HB 9, originally
contenplated two different classes of |icenses: the professional
private investigator and a paraprofessional class, wth each
class requiring slightly different |evels of education. The
|icense application process outlined that applicants nmust submt
to fingerprinting and an investigation, in which the departnent
woul d conduct an investigation to identify and "weed out"”

applicants who should not be awarded a |icense. In addition,
private investigators who held private investigator licenses in
another jurisdiction could apply for reciprocity in Al aska, she
said. Under the bill, the departnment would issue a professional
license identification and an agency certificate plus it would
require bonding and liability provisions. The |icense renewal
woul d be non-transferable, which is a provision that wll be

retained in the proposed committee substitute (CS) for HB 9,
Version H [not yet before the commttee], since licenses should
not be transferable. She noted that firearns training was added
last year in a hearing on a simlar bill for private
i nvestigator |icensure. Al t hough anyone in Alaska can have a
"conceal ed carry” weapon permt, due to the nature of the work,
it was felt that private investigators should be subject to a
firearns training course. She stated that confidentiality of a
licensee's personal identifying information was initially
i ncluded, but the provisions have proven difficult for the
division, so the Ilanguage [Sec. 08.85.250] was renoved in
proposed Version H

3:47:12 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 13, 2015



V. BLAI SDELL turned to [ Sec. 08. 85. 260] to prohibited

practices, which would allow the departnent to inpose
di sciplinary sanctions, including revoking a license or inposing
a fine for inappropriate activity. This section would clearly

identify the types of circunstances for which the departnent
could inpose fines on |icensees. She directed attention to the
immunity for conplainants, J[under Sec. 08.85.270] which was

added due to a lawsuit. She related that the Administrative
Procedures Act (APA) provisions wuld allow the departnent to
adopt regulations for private investigators. She directed

attention to the long list of exenptions, which includes people
who would not need to conply wth private investigator
i censure.

3:48: 23 PM

V5. BLAI SDELL directed attention to definitions for the
commi ssioner and departnent that would oversee the private
i nvestigator program The transitional provisions would provide
"grandfathering in" of current private investigators until their
licenses were renewed. She stated that the original bill, [HB
9], had an effective date of July 2015.

3:49: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 9, Version H, |abeled 29-LS0056\H,
Strasbaugh, 3/12/15 as the working docunent.

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

3:50:41 PM

MS. BLAI SDELL pointed out that she "redlined" a copy of the
original version of the bill, [HB 9], and offered to highlight
the changes included in the proposed conmttee substitute for HB
9, Version H

CHAI R OLSON asked whet her she could provide the conmttee with a
si de- by-si de conparison outlining the changes in Version H for
the conmittee.

M5. BLAI SDELL agreed to do so.

3:51: 31 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 13, 2015



MS. BLAISDELL directed attention to page 1 of Version H, which
has a slight change in the title to reflect changes made in the

bill. Section 1 would remain the sanme, but would add regul ation
of private investigators to the professional |icensure class of
j obs. On page 1, line 9, references to private investigator

agencies were renoved, so even if a person owned an agency, the
license would be limted solely to the private investigator who
conducts the private investigator's duties. On page 2, line 18
[ Sec. 08.85.110] the scope of practice added |anguage, which
read, "A license entitles an individual to operate a private
investigator agency as an individual, a partner, or chief
executive officer of a corporation.”

3:53: 08 PM

M5. BLAI SDELL directed attention to page 2, line 20, of Version
H  which would establish general requirenents for private

i nvestigators. She clarified that the language in the origina
bill appeared to allow the DCCED to nake the determ nation on
"nmoral turpitude,” however, noral turpitude was defined in

statute. This provision was renoved in Version H, since nost of
the crinmes of this type fall under Section 2 to those convicted
of a felony. She clarified that |anguage was left to prohibit
persons convicted of sexual offenses from becomng private
i nvestigators.

3:54: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for further clarification on whether
this |anguage would only apply to felonies. She asked whet her
sone m sdeneanors, such as crinmes of dishonesty should also be
i ncl uded.

MS. BLAI SDELL answered that she was not sure whether dishonesty
woul d be classified as a m sdeneanor or a felony. She suggested
that was part of the reason "noral turpitude"” was placed in the
original bill; however, due to significant public opposition,
the provision was renoved. She suggested this could be
sonething the commttee could further consider.

3:55:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said he was concerned with the bill
fromthe outset since it was "just too nmuch in just about every
respect."” He acknow edged that Representative LeDoux made a
good point, since crines of dishonesty are inpeachable in court,
but a client may wish to know if the private investigator who

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 13, 2015



acted as a witness in court was inpeachable. He suggested that
fact could be an inportant point.

3:56: 07 PM

MS. BLAISDELL referred to page 2, lines 29-30, to paragraph (5)
of Version H, which would preclude applicants who nay have been
declared by a court to be nentally inconpetent. One item
renmoved from the original bill was that a person dishonorably
di scharged from the armed forces of the United States could not
serve as a private investigator. After further review, it was
suggested that the nmeaning of "dishonorable discharge" has
changed over tine. She said that dishonorable discharges issued
during the Vietnam War related to fairly egregious crines that
were comm tted; however, nore recently sonme of the dishonorable
di scharges issued are related to such things as mlitary nenbers
who suffered from alcohol addiction or post-traumatic stress
syndrome, which may not necessarily be disqualifying reasons to
work in this professional job class. Anot her paragraph [(7)]
was renoved that disqualified applicants who were enployed in
ot her jobs, such as peace officers or those who work in other
state or federal |aw enforcenment positions. This provision was

removed because it was |likely that the enployee would have
signed a waiver with respect to enploynent. [On page 3, lines
13- 14, subparagraph (C), of Version A] [|anguage was also
removed, which read, "in a position the departnment determnes to

represent a conflict of interest for the prospective |icensee.”
This | anguage was renoved since it appeared to | eave significant
discretion to the departnent with respect to determning any
conflicts of interest.

3:58:43 PM

MS. BLAISDELL directed attention to the private investigator
license [AS 08.85.130, Version H on page 3, beginning on line
1, which read, "Applicants nust be at |east 21 years of age and
pay the required fee." She suggested that the conmttee also
consi der renoving |anguage on page 3, lines 5-20, which would
require mni mum educational requirenents for the two classes of
private investigator |icenses. This | anguage was inadvertently
not renoved during the devel opnent of Version H, she said.

M5. BLAISDELL directed attention on page 3, lines 21-31, of
Version H, to the |icense application process. I nstead of
listing every single piece of identifying information, the
applicant can now choose the appropriate application form she
sai d.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 13, 2015



4:00: 25 PM

CHAIR OLSON related his wunderstanding that three political
jurisdictions, i ncluding Fairbanks, Anchor age, and Juneau
currently offer private investigator |icenses.

M5. BLAISDELL answered that the City of Fairbanks and the
[ Muni ci pality] of Anchorage offer private investigator |icenses,
but Juneau does not currently do so.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER in the audience interjected that "it was on
the books in Kenai, but it hasn't been enforced."

4:01: 07 PM

IVS. BLAI SDELL stated that applicants must sign their
application, attesting that the information is true, rather than
necessitating that the departnment verify that the information on
the application is true and accurate. If an applicant submts
false information, the applicant could be prosecuted for the
of fense, she said, plus, the applicant nust submt fingerprints
and fees for a national crimnal history background check.

4:01:42 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether the applicant would sign
under penalty of perjury that everything on the application was

true.

MS. BLAI SDELL was unsure, but suggested that additional |anguage
coul d be added.

REPRESENTATI VE TILTON poi nted out that the |anguage was al so on
page 5, line 22 of the marked-up redline version of [HB 9].

4:02: 27 PM

MS. BLAISDELL directed attention to the |anguage that renoved
the requirenent for a notarized signhature [page 5, |ines 24-25,
of HB 9]. The sponsor initially wanted applicants to show their

identification in order to verify who they were, but changed it
to allow applicants to sign that the information was accurate,
so the requirement for the notarized signature was al so renoved.

4:03:14 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 13, 2015



M5. BLAISDELL turned to the requirenent for fingerprints. She
said she reviewed the screening process for fingerprinting
requi renents, noting the reason to submt fingerprints for each
application was to recognize that the crimnal history for the
person submtting the information could change. Fi ngerprints
remain as the only source of identifying a person, since the
bill does not recogni ze DNA [ Deoxyribonucleic acid] or
bi ometrics since the national identification index holds
fingerprints, but does not retain DNA or iris scans or other
types of bionmetrics. Fingerprints can help identify other alias
an applicant has wused, plus it is part of the interstate
conpact, she said.

4:04:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether fingerprint requirenments are
required for |icense renewal.

M5. BLAI SDELL answered that another section in the bill requires
fingerprints be submtted once every 10 years to update the
private investigator's crimnal history; however, applicants can
have multiple renewals within that 10-year period.

4:04:49 PM

CHAIR OLSON said he did not think that was standard procedure,
since he holds several professional |icenses. He recalled he
was able to use one set of fingerprints to apply for reciprocity
in several other states.

M5. BLAISDELL didn't specifically recall the source of this
| anguage, but suggested it was derived from another state's
requi renents. She further recalled that the program she used as
a nodel required a background check every third application
renewal .

CHAIR OLSON also did not think the Alaska Bar Association
required that type of requirenent.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX offered her belief that she submtted one
set of fingerprints when she was initially licensed in Al aska
for the bar, but wasn't required to submt to subsequent
fingerprinting.

4:06: 02 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 13, 2015



MS. BLAI SDELL directed attention to page 4 of Version H to the
requi renent of two photographs for the applicant. She suggested
the departnent mght decide to issue private investigator
identification cards at a |ater date.

4:06:43 PM

M5. BLAISDELL said that on page 4, line 5, [subsection (d) of
Version H|, the departnent shall require that an application for
a license issued under this chapter be submtted with notice
that fal se statenents are puni shable as unsworn falsification in
the second degree under AS 11.56. 210. She was unsure if that
| anguage would help satisfy Representative LeDoux's earlier
concern about perjury on applications.

CHAIR OLSON asked that the record reflect that Representative
LeDoux agr eed.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX clarified that she was curious about the
provi sion, but not necessarily concerned.

4:07: 38 PM

M5. BLAISDELL related sonme time consuming provisions were
renoved from the application process, including the need for
letters of reconmendations, docunentation to substantiate that
the applicant met the requirenents, and the need for the
depart nment to conduct an investigation. I nst ead, t he
application process relies on the applicant's word that the
information is true, rather than require a notarized signature
on the application form which should sinplify the application
process.

MS. BLAI SDELL directed attention to page 4, line 8 [of Version
H to [proposed AS 08.85.150] to the unlawful practices for
private investigator agencies. She said a private investigator
may operate a private investigator agency if the person holds a
private investigator license and carries an insurance policy, a
surety bond or other form of security for not |ess than $15, 000,
which was fairly standard practice for many businesses. She
pointed out that initially the bill established a class A
m sdeneanor for anyone who know ngly violated this provision,
but due to adverse public comment, the penalty was changed to a
vi ol ati on under AS 12.55.

4:09: 34 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 13, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether soneone operating an agency
without a license or a policy of insurance would constitute a
vi ol ati on.

M5. BLAI SDELL answered yes; that it would simlar to failure to
obtain requirenents for being |licensed and bonded.

4:10:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked whether a person who doesn't hold a
private investigator license but operates as a private
investigator would be guilty of a violation. She asked for

further clarification on the punishnment under AS 12.55.

MS. BLAI SDELL answered that AS 12.55 relates to the code of
crim nal procedure, wth a wde variety of punishnents,

sentencing and probation. She suggested that the Ilevel of
puni shment would Ilikely be decided in regulation by the
depart nment. She added that the public felt that m sdeneanors

and crimnal fines did not seem warrant ed.
4:11: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what the highest fine could be under
AS 12.55 for a violation.

M5. BLAI SDELL suggested that it would be left to the discretion
of the departnent to establish by regul ation.

4:11:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON offered his belief that a violation was
considered an infraction, with a maximum fine of a few hundred
dol | ars.

M5. BLAI SDELL pointed out in nenbers' packets was a five-page
list from the Division of Cor por at i ons, Busi ness, and
Prof essional Licensing (DCBPL) entitled "Crimnal Prosecution
[Authority],"” which lists crimnal m sdeneanors and felonies for
every profession. However, at this point, the bill would limt
the maxi mum offense to violation and the process to devel op
regul ati ons woul d set the penalty.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON stated that this list was useful to him
since he had concerns about the penalties.

4:13: 24 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 13, 2015



M5. BLAI SDELL directed attention to page 4, line 15 of Version H
to the license renewal and nontransferability in [proposed AS

08. 85. 160] . This |anguage was also included in the original
bill, with the exception of line 27, in which the departnent may
require a new set of fingerprints wthin 10 years. She

suggested that the <conmttee my wsh to review proposed
subsection (d).

M5. BLAISDELL directed attention to page 5, |ine 3, to,
prohi bited practices [proposed AS 08.85.170]. This | anguage
mrrored the |language in the original bill, and would allow the
departnment to sanction a private investigator. Since the
private investigator structure was established w thout a board,
the departnent will assune the responsibility that a board m ght

ot herw se undert ake.
4:15: 11 PM

M5. BLAISDELL advised nenbers that Version H also renoved
firearns training requirenents [in proposed AS 08.85.240 and AS
08.85.250 on page 9 of the original bill and confidentiality of
licensee's personal identifying information]. In addition,
immunity for conplainants [on page 10, proposed AS 08.85.270 of
Version Al was al so renpved.

M5. BLAISDELL directed attention to page 6, lines 9-10, to the
Adm ni strative Procedure Act reference, which would allow the
department to inplenment regulations that was also in the
original bill.

4:15:52 PM

MS. BLAISDELL directed attention to page 6, lines 11-31 through
page 8, line 5, of Version H to exenptions, [which mrror
provisions in HB 9]. She reviewed the exenptions and the

rationale used for them She directed attention to paragraph
(1), which refers to investigations conducted by a hunman
resources departnent, who investigate prospective enployees and
conduct background checks within the affairs of the enployer.
Thus the internal staff would obtain information on prospective
enpl oyees, but those activities do not extend to the public, she
sai d.

M5. BLAISDELL said paragraph (2) relates to an officer or

enpl oyee of the US, such as police officer, who have the
statutory duty to perform investigations in the course of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 13, 2015



perform ng his/her official duties. Paragraph (3) would relate
to a person engaged exclusively in the business of obtaining
financial information, such as conpanies who offer |oans or
credit services that are restricted to financial services only.
She said that paragraph (4) related to investigations by an
attorney, while performng duties as an attorney, noting these
professionals are licensed and subject to ethics. Paragraph (5)
relates to investigations conducted by a licensed collection
agency, who perform investigations for the specific purpose of
soliciting collections.

4:18: 06 PM

MS. BLAISDELL directed attention to additional exenptions,
i ncl udi ng paragraph (6) for claim adjustors, who investigate the
facts of an incident and do not investigate the general public;
and paragraph (7) for an enployee of a bank, who conduct duties
within the scope of his/her enploynment, noting there activities
do not extend to the general public, but are limted to the
scope of enploynent to the bank. She stated that paragraph (8)
relates to activities of a licensed insurance adjuster who
performs duties within the scope of the adjuster's license; and
paragraph (9), relates to "repo" work, by the owner of the debt
if the debtor does not pay, which is covered under uniform
commercial code (UCC). She said that paragraph (10) relates to
a forensic scientist, who basically assenbles facts to support
an opinion, but does not investigate behavior; and paragraph
(11) relates to those gathering information from other records,
such as wusing Alaska's CourtView [public access website] or
Googl e, but were not offering services beyond what the public
can access. She stated that (12) related to a person solely
engaged in pre-enploynment or human resources background
screening, which does not include surveillance, but mght be
soneone performng lie detector screenings or fingerprints;
while paragraph (13) exenpted news nedia, who  conduct
journalistic investigations.

M5. BLAI SDELL directed attention to paragraph (14), which would
exenpt a person from another jurisdiction who holds a private
investigator license, who mght be conducting a specific
incident review. She specifically pointed out that subparagraph
(B), would allow private investigators reciprocity in the state
for less than 30 days in a calendar year, but beyond that the

out-of-state investigator would need to obtain licensure in
Al aska.
4:20: 53 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 13, 2015



M5. BLAI SDELL directed attention to paragraph (15), which would
exenpt process servers, who are licensed to perform duties under
the Alaska Rules of Court; and to paragraph (16), which would
exenpt a paralegal in the enploy of an attorney or law firm
She stated that paragraph (17) would allow a person to conduct
geneal ogi cal research; and paragraph (18) would exenpt a person
who conducts fact-finding investigations in order to determ ne
the cause of a fire, explosion, or accident.

4:21:28 PM

MS. BLAISDELL indicated a significant nunber of people assess
information for businesses and agencies, but two key elenents
specifically apply to private investigators: that the private
i nvestigator can work for multiple entities rather than just one
enpl oyer; and the private investigator was authorized to conduct
surveil |l ance.

4:22:02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON commented that the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 9, Version H, was vastly inproved over

the original bill; however, he still has several questions.
Wth respect to the right to surveil, he was unsure of the
extent that these rights encroach on AS 18.66, which relates to
restraining orders. He suggested that the sponsor nmay wish to
gi ve sonme thought to those provisions. I n addition, he pointed

out that paragraph (15) would exenpt process servers, who
perform surveillance activities, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON recalled earlier testinony, that the
public can perform these investigative task thensel ves; however
he questioned whether that identifies the correct test, since a
| ot of what private investigators can do, a person can also do
t hensel ves. For exanple, a person can record a conversation
unless it is | aw enforcenent doing the recording, he said.

CHAIR OLSON clarified that one party nust be aware of the
recordi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE  JOSEPHSON  agr eed t hat t he af or ement i oned
exenptions were necessary.

4:23:39 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 13, 2015



M5. BLAISDELL referred to page 8, line 6, of Version H, noting
the definition section did not change. She referred to page 8,
line 13, licensing of private investigators, which would reserve
the authority to |license private investigators except as
specifically provided in statute. Under this provision
muni ci palities cannot enforce the |licensure of private
investigators since it will allow |licensees to conduct business
in any part of the state. Currently, if a private investigator
was operating in a city wiwthout a |licensure program the private
investigator wouldn't need any license [other than a business

license], but if the private investigator was working in
Anchorage, he/she would go through the process to obtain
muni ci pal licensure, including paying fees. She described this

section as creating a "one license fits all."
4:24:54 PM

MS. BLAISDELL directed attention to the last change made in the
transitional provisions, which would change the date from July
1, 2015 to July 1, 2016 to allow the departnent sufficient tine
to inplenment regulations and allow tine for applicants to go
t hrough the process to obtain |licensure.

4:25:20 PM

M5. BLAISDELL noted that <currently a person who obtains a
business license may indicate investigative services as the job
class, which would allow them access private information in 70
to 80 databases w thout undergoi ng a background check, by paying
a $50 fee for a business license and a snall fee, such as a $10
fee to access a database. Thus private investigators can
currently gain access to the Division of Mtor Vehicles' (DW)
information, including obtaining information on |icense hol ders,
such as driving infractions, i nsurance carriers, vehi cl e
I i enhol ders, and their physical addresses.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked for further clarification that
this can be currently be done.

MS. BLAI SDELL answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether this bill would change
this ability.

MS. BLAI SDELL answered that this bill wll provide protections

since a person working as a private investigator nmust submt to
a background check and pay a professional |icense fee. Although

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 13, 2015



she was uncertain of the amount of ©private investigator
licensing fees, she hoped instituting fees would deter sone
peopl e from appl yi ng.

4:27:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked for further <clarification on
which bill section would preclude him from accessing Court Vi ew.
He expressed concern over disallowing 700,000 Alaskans from
accessing information that they currently can access. He asked
whet her that was sonething the bill would do.

M5. BLAI SDELL answered no; that the general public would not be
precluded from accessing public databases. I nstead, this bill
woul d establish i censure requi renents for private
investigators, which would be the access point to private
dat abases. She stated that private investigators can currently
obtain a business |license and access databases to obtain
i nformation.

4:28:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if the bill were to pass, whether
it would prevent people from paying a $50 fee for a business
license to access dat abases containing private information.

M5. BLAI SDELL answered that under HB 9, [Version H, a person
woul d need to go through a background check, submt a conpleted
appl i cati on, and be awar ded a private i nvestigator's
professional license in order to have access to databases
containing confidential information. She said that wunder the
bill if a person was interested in accessing private databases

the person would need to go through the private investigator
licensing process to do so.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON t hought he heard the answer was yes.
V5. BLAI SDELL agr eed.
4:29:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what private databases people can
access wth a business |icense.

M5. BLAI SDELL answered that people can access the DW' s dat abase
by paying a $10 fee. She said the access criteria requires a

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 13, 2015



busi ness |icense by the state that indicates the person provides
i nvestigative services.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said it sounded like the DW database in
guestion was a state database and not a private database.

MS. BLAI SDELL answered that the general public cannot query DW
and obtain the sanme information.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX suggested she would like to speak to the
DW to get further information.

4:31:13 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES suggested that "private" in this context

referred access to personal information not otherw se avail abl e.
She said the public can search the DW database, but this bill

woul d reach into another layer of information. |In response to a
guestion by Representative Josephson, she replied that people
would need to becone licensed as a private investigator;

however, they do not need to operate a practice in order to have
access to personal information. She expl ained that as sponsor
her primary concern was about protection  of per sonal
information, which is very inportant during this electronic age.
She has discovered instances in which a person's privacy was
invaded and this protection for Alaskans is inportant. Thi s
bill has evolved as a result of input she has received.
Certainly, a significant nunber of private investigators are
doing good work, helping Al askans and she does not want to
hi nder the private investigators practicing in Al aska, but to
"shore up the profession,” allow it to be nore credible, and to
enhance the respect the field should have, while providing
Al askans with the confort that they are al so protected.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said this hearing nmay have identified a
probl em beyond this bill if the Division of Mdtor Vehicles (DW)
has been giving out private infornmation.

4:33: 55 PM

M5. BLAISDELL said she researched investigators |licensed in
Anchorage and Fairbanks. She noted that 46 licensed private
investigators operate in Anchorage. She further asked the

Muni cipality of Anchorage (MOA) to project the financial inpact
if the MOA was no longer licensing private investigators. The
MOA anticipated a reduction in revenue of $4,600 if HB 9 passed.
She reported that Fairbanks currently licenses 17 private

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 13, 2015



investigators, and charges $400 for a biennial Iicense. The
City of Fairbanks estinmated an anticipated reduction in revenue
of $2,000 per year. She indicated that Fairbanks has not had
any conpl aints agai nst private i nvestigators, but t he
Miuni ci pality of Anchorage recalled one conplaint, although that
case was referred to the police.

MS. BLAI SDELL, in response to Representative Josephson's concern
about stalking, said that the aforenentioned conplaint related
to that type of activity, which was turned over to the police.
She stated that the Departnment of Conmerce, Conmunity & Econom c
Devel opnent had 96 business licenses that listed investigative
services as the services offered. She estinmated approximtely
50 private investigators in the state currently provide
investigative work, with an additional 50 out-of-state |icensees
offering services, although many of the out-of-state- |icenses
likely were "state stacking" in order to add Alaska to the
nunber of states in which the person was |icensed, but the
private investigator did not actually practice in Al aska. She
said the private investigators are a small, but inportant group
of professionals.

4:35:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether this bill was introduced
due to a ki dnapped barista case.

IVS. BLAI SDELL answered that the aforenentioned case was
certainly an eye opener, but other reasons exist in terns of

licensing private investigators in Al aska. She offered her
belief that this bill wll inprove public safety for Al askans.
4:36:41 PM

CHAIR COLSON renoved his objection. There being no further

obj ection, Version H was before the conmttee.

4:36: 56 PM

CHAI R OLSON opened public testinony on HB 9, Version H

4:37:18 PM

STEVE CHRI STOPHER, Owmner, Investigative Services of Al aska, LLC
with respect to the public safety aspect, indicated that current

|aws protect the public from private investigators and other
i ndi vi dual s. For exanple, he said the situation wth the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 13, 2015



barista constituted fraud so the public had other crimnal and
civil penalties available to provide protection. Secondly, the
state prosecutes offenses, such as inpersonation of a police
officer, so the current statutes protect the public from that
type of activity. As far as private investigators having access
to databases, he offered his belief that a private person can
access the same information. For exanple, Mdtznik Information
Services provides Division of Mtor Vehicle (DW) information
and anyone can pay fees to obtain access to that data, which
does not require a private investigator |icense; however, the
information provided is limted to the nanme of the individual
the vehicle, and the lienholder, but not personal infornmation.
In ternms of exenptions, he directed attention to paragraph (14),
whi ch he said pronotes out-of-state hire since the average rate
in Alaska is significantly higher than the Lower 48. He offered
his belief that the Lower 48 investigative rates are $15-20 per
hour as conpared to Alaska's rates of $50 to $100 per hour. He
expressed concern that the insurance conpanies could hire Lower
48 private investigators since it will be cheaper to fly themto
Al aska, yet the Lower 48 investigator can avoid the licensure
process.

4:40: 29 PM

MR. CHRI STOPHER said that if he travels to the Lower 48, he nust
pay a fee to practice, which is not how it happens in Al aska.
He said that many of the background sites sinply require a
person to pay a fee to obtain any information a private
i nvestigator can currently access, except for a few sites such
as the LexisNexis Goup data that requires special clearance;
therefore private investigators cannot access the information.
He said that databases have safeguards in place to prevent

peopl e from obtaining personal information. He pointed out he
has addressed other issues, such as fingerprints, in letters of
opposition he has previously sent in. He related his

understanding that "violations" typically relate to fish and
gane of fenses; however, he has not found any occupations subject
to class A m sdeneanor or felony charges.

4:41: 34 PM
W LLI AM PARLI ER, Omer, MHenry Detective Agency, stated that he

owns the MHenry Detective Agency, which was established in
1975. He said he purchased the conmpany in 1993 and has been

actively engaged as a private investigator for 22 years. He
offered his belief that nost of the people involved as private
investigators work as part-time investigators. He said he

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 13, 2015



agreed with M. Christopher's testinony. He explained his
issues relate to what constitutes a private investigator. He
stated that he reviewed the ACS [Al aska Communications G oup,
Inc.] June 2014 yellow pages and found 29 listings for private
investigators or detectives. He tel ephoned each of them and
found that 13 of 29 listings for private investigators were not
functioning nunbers and had been disconnected. He identified
seven private investigators currently operating in Anchorage,
al though only two were working as fulltinme investigators. He
suggested the state should look at the classification term for
"enpl oyee" since many attorney firnms hire private investigators,
but by definition they should fall under "enployee" rather than
private investigators or private contractors. He explained that
the Departnment of Labor & Wrkforce Developnent's (DLVWD) | aws
di stingui sh between private contractors and enpl oyees. He asked
to read a paragraph from DLMD s website, which read, "Control is
exerci sed when workers are totally dependent upon the enployer
econoni cal | y. The enpl oyer exercises the necessary control of
t he enpl oyee through nonetary neans. For exanple, a worker who
perforns services primarily for one conpany  woul d be
econonm cally dependent wupon that conpany.” Therefore, any
private investigators who call thenselves private investigators,
but work for one or two law firns technically are not private
investigators or independent contractors, but are actually
enpl oyees. He characterized that this [bill] was a "tenpest in
a teapot." He suggested that in Anchorage there were literally
5-6 people working fulltine.

CHAIR OLSON surmsed that M. Parlier did not like the new
version of the bill.

MR. PARLIER suggested that there are less than 10 fulltinme
private investigators who currently work in Al aska.

4:46:13 PM

ROBERT SHAW Owmner, Robert Shaw Agency, stated that he has been
licensed in Alaska and by the Minicipality of Anchorage since
1996, and prior to that he has worked in the field for 20 years
in the Lower 48 and overseas. Wiile it has taken significant
time and energy to put together the background for the bill, he
did not understand why the state would nmake such a "big
production" for the few people involved in the private

investigator industry. He expressed concern about the
investigative services being billed out by law firns, but he
doubt ed any i nvestigative services occurred, whi ch he
characterized as fraudulent. He directed attention to the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- March 13, 2015



audience in the [legislative information office] hearing room
noting only a half dozen people showed up. He asked nenbers to
reconsider the bill inits current format.

4:49: 01 PM

JAMES HOFERER, Omer, JPH Enterprises, stated he runs a private
i nvestigative agency in Anchorage. He grew up in California,
but he has resided in Al aska for 13 years. He studied crimna
justice and psychology at the University of California, Irvine
After doing some work in Alaska, he decided to start his own

business since he has an interest in the Jlaw and in
i nvesti gations. He has operated a l|icensed private detective
agency for the last three and one-half years and has another
year remaining on his biennial Iicense. He expressed concern
about the bill because he prides hinself on the work he perforns
for attorneys and private citizens. This bill makes it sound
like there has been sone type of taint on the type of work
private investigators perform He recalled M. Blaisdell's
testinmony that 17 |licensed investigators in Fairbanks have
operating wthout any conplaints and 46 |licensed private

i nvestigators operate in Anchorage, but one conplaint was filed
in the past 10 years and that conplaint was referred to the
police departnent. He said that it does not sound |ike a |ot of
public safety concerns about the profession exist. He offered
his belief that private investigators are doing a good job by
hel ping attorneys and the defense, in helping private citizens
| ocate relatives, or working on civil cases, such as infidelity
or workers' conpensation, but these private investigators are
not getting a "fair shake." He said he thought this bill
represented an "overkill." He acknow edged that the sponsor and
commttee have put in significant time and effort, but this tine
and effort could be used on sonething nore inportant than trying
to regulate private investigators when there have not been

conplaints filed against them In conclusion, he said the whole
premse in bringing this bill forward was a m stake, including
| ast year's bill that this conmttee heard.

4:51: 36 PM

FRANK  WAKE, Private | nvesti gat or, Fr ank Wake Private
| nvestigative Services, LLC, recalled reading an opinion piece a
few days ago witten by Senator MacKi nnon. The opinion
suggested that a bill is an "idea" or a "policy consideration”
to engage Al askans in a discussion about their governnment and
how the proposed idea would affect people. Therefore he
characterized this bill, HB 9, as being a discussion. He said

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- March 13, 2015



that [private investigators] have offered their opinions, nostly
negative, about this bill. He has not seen any letters other
than several brief and uninspired e-mails regarding the bill
and there are no other coments to support the proposed
| egi sl ati on.

MR. WAKE wondered which commttee nmenbers favored HB 9 since
significant issues have been raised about the projected costs by
the Division [of Corporations, Busi ness, and Professiona
Li censi ng] . He acknow edged that he considers the projected
costs to be a big issue. In fact, this bill represents an
unknown cost based on an unknown nunber of potential |icensees.
He trusted that nenbers have read the letters and are aware of
[private investigators'] opposition to the bill. He consi dered
HB 9 to be a waste of tine. As far as he was concerned other
remedies exist for any transgressions rather than 1licensing
private investigators. For exanple, people can file civil
| awsuits or crimnal charges and fraud and theft can be handl ed
by local [|aw enforcenent. He asked nenbers to engage in a
di al ogue with private investigators since they are the ones who
will be regulated under HB 9. He asked what other concerns
exi st that necessitate private investigator |icensing, other
than public safety concerns, which have been found | acking. He
said that private investigators are wlling to answer any
guesti ons. In conclusion, he said he did not understand the
"burning need" for this proposed |egislation. For exanple, he
asked whet her the state has been overrun by private
investigators who are running around causing problens that

necessitate licensing the entire profession. "I haven't seen it
in my 28 years. In ny opinion, there isn't a need, there isn't
a good reason, and this bill should stay right where it is as a

policy consideration to engage Al askans in a discussion wth
t heir governnent," he said.

4:54: 41 PM

CHAIR OLSON said that the commttee is willing to listen to the
concer ns. He also expressed concern about the cost of the
program based on the size of fiscal note.

4:54:56 PM

DENA BOUGHTON, Owner, Justice Ilnvestigations, stated that she
has been a professional investigator in Anchorage for 10 years

and her Fairbanks |icense is pending. She did not think the
figures presented today were accurate. She failed to see how
this bill Wil protect the public, given that private

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- March 13, 2015



investigators are licensed in Anchorage, yet an event in
Anchorage happened to the Koenig famly and |icensure did not

protect them She did not see how this bill would prevent
anyone from coming into the state and conning a fanmly.
Instead, this bill wll place a burden on the people |iving and
working in the comunity. She said she lives in Al aska where
peopl e know her and what she does for a living. She found it
difficult to imagine how she could con anyone since she has a
public business. The aforenentioned databases that she can
access are also ones conmttee nenbers and the public can also
access. She thanked nenbers for considering the private

i nvestigator profession, but she did not think it was being
considered in the right light. She has basically heard that the
bill wll provide the public with protection from private
i nvestigators, but she would |like to support her colleagues who
testified today.

4:56:40 PM

ANTHONY COZZETTI, Owmer, Paladin Investigations, stated that he
primarily works on |egal investigations, which requires himto
go to the prisons to interview prisoners. The Departnent of
Corrections has been deliberately interdicting the services of a
private investigator, he said, and he hoped that the conmmttee

will consider that once a person is licensed as a private
investigator that the state shouldn't interfere with his/her
i nvesti gations. He viewed this interference as being a
constitutional issue, in particular, when a prisoner hires
hi s/ her own private investigator. He hoped the committee woul d
address this issue in the bill. Further, investigators for the
state and attorneys have been getting "a free ride," which
should be exam ned. Al so, every paralegal works as an
investigator, but not every investigator is a paralegal, he

sai d, which should al so be taken into consi derati on.
4:59:11 PM

LINK FANNON, Owmner, Oacle Investigations, expressed concern
that he did not have nuch of an opportunity to review the
proposed comrittee substitute; however, sone of the issues the
commttee has heard today are absolutely 100 percent inaccurate.
He preferred not use the word "lie," but said the information is
sinply not true. He referred to a docunment in nenbers' packets,
whi ch he thought was considered a sponsor statenent, and read,
"Wth this credential an individual can now access 70 to 80
percent of restricted national databases that provide access to
personal information.”" He said, "That's not true." He recalled

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- March 13, 2015



an earlier question that Representative LeDoux had about the DW
records. He replied that anyone can go through Motznik
I nformation Services [Mtznik] to obtain the D vision of Motor
Vehicl e (DW) records. He questioned the "70 to 80 percent of
restricted national databases,” that private investigators can
access. He said that private investigators are private citizens
wi thout |aw enforcenent status or anything else that a private
citizen doesn't have. Thus the tasks that private investigators

can perform under this bill are ones private citizens can do
t hensel ves. He further recalled that Representative Josephson
raised the idea that individuals can surveil, in fact, anyone

can watch soneone, but not stalk them since stalking raises a
di fferent issue.

MR. FANNON enphasi zed that he has other problens with the bill.
He said the fiscal inpact was extensive. He read from the
sponsor statenent for HB 9, which read, "HB 9 is not a new
concept for Alaska nor the profession.” It goes on to talk
about the Minicipality of Anchorage and the Gty of Fairbanks
licensing of private investigators. He suggested that those
licenses were basically a background check process to weed out
peopl e who are felons. He said that HB 9 contains extensive
restrictions. The bill attenpts to protect the public from
private investigators, but then exenpts npbst of them He
hi ghlighted that he previously wrked as an adjustor, handling
personal injury protection cases. As a personal injury
protection adjuster, the adjuster ensures that treatnent 1is
reasonabl e and necessary and related to an accident. In fact,
under the bill, adjusters work would be considered conducting an
investigation so the public doesn't need be protected against
them He sinply did not think the bill nade any sense, he said.
He characterized HB 9 as "legislation |ooking for a problem™”

MR. FANNON offered his belief that this bill was not well
t hought out and included nunerous anbiguities. For exanple, he
referred to page 6, line 8, [under prohibited practices] to
par agr aph, which read "(8) failed to conply with an order issued
by the departnment.” He said that he was unsure what that neant,
who in the departnent it referred to, and what order was being
ref erenced. He enphasized that this bill was far reaching in

terns of governnent overreach and with the current $50 per
barrel oil prices, he suggested that the state has a l|ot of
other things to worry about. He appreciated nenbers' tine today
since he knows |l|egislators have a |lot of pressing issues.
Unfortunately, this bill would affect the lives and professions
of private investigators, he said. In conclusion, he stated
that he strongly opposes HB 9 since this bill is not well

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- March 13, 2015



t hought out, has a lot of problens, and doesn't solve anything
t hat has been "proposed as a problem"”

5:03: 08 PM

CHAI R OLSON noted that the biggest stunbling block at this point
was the fiscal note.

[HB 9 was hel d over. ]

5:03: 29 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at
5:03 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- March 13, 2015



